

**EIGHTY-SECOND DAY'S PROCEEDINGS
HALL OF THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES**

Little Rock, Arkansas
April 5, 2013

The House was called to order at 1:00 p.m. by Mr. Carter, the Speaker. The following members answered to the roll call:

Alexander, C. Armstrong, E. Armstrong, Baine, Baird, Ballinger, Baltz, Barnett, Bell, Biviano, Bragg, Branscum, Broadway, Burris, Carnine, Catlett, Clemmer, Collins, Copenhaver, Dale, Davis, Deffenbaugh, Dickinson, Dotson, C. Douglas, D. Douglas, Edwards, Eubanks, Farrer, Ferguson, Fielding, Fite, Gillam, Gossage, Hammer, Harris, Hawthorne, Hickerson, Hillman, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, House, Hutchison, Jean, Jett, Julian, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, Lea, Leding, Lenderman, Linck, Love, Lowery, Magie, Malone, Mayberry, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, McLean, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Miller, Murdock, Neal, Nickels, Overbey, Payton, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Richey, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Slinkard, Smith, Steel, Talley, Thompson, Vines, Wagner, Walker, Wardlaw, Westerman, Whitaker, B. Wilkins, H. Wilkins, Williams, Womack, Wren, Wright, Mr. Speaker.

Total97

The following member(s) was absent and did not answer to the roll call:
Altes, Cozart, Word.

Total3

A quorum was present.

Unanimous leave was granted for Representative(s) Altes, Cozart, Word.

The House stood and was led in prayer by Pastor Phillip L. Painter, Sr., St. Mark Baptist Church, Little Rock, Arkansas.

The House stood and gave the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.

The reading of the Journal of yesterday's proceedings was dispensed with.

COMMITTEE REPORT

April 5, 2013

EDUCATION

JAMES MCLEAN

CHAIRPERSON

HOUSE BILL NO. 2095

DO PASS

BY REPRESENTATIVE MURDOCK

SENATE BILL NO. 814

DO PASS

BY SENATOR KEY

SENATE BILL NO. 836

DO PASS

BY SENATOR KEY

AS AMENDED #1

SENATE BILL NO. 942

DO PASS

BY SENATOR CHEATHAM

SENATE BILL NO. 1002

DO PASS

BY SENATOR THOMPSON

AS AMENDED #1

SENATE BILL NO. 1037

DO PASS

BY SENATOR INGRAM

AS AMENDED #1

SENATE BILL NO. 1043

DO PASS

BY SENATOR CHESTERFIELD

SENATE BILL NO. 1146

DO PASS

BY SENATOR HENDREN

SENATE BILL NO. 1184

DO PASS

BY SENATOR FILES

COMMITTEE REPORT

April 5, 2013

JUDICIARY

JOHN T. VINES

CHAIRPERSON

HOUSE BILL NO. 1993

DO PASS

BY REPRESENTATIVE STEEL

HOUSE BILL NO. 1996

DO PASS

BY REPRESENTATIVE STEEL

AS AMENDED #2

HOUSE BILL NO. 2159

DO PASS

BY REPRESENTATIVE E. ARMSTRONG

CONCUR IN SENATE

AMENDMENT #1

COMMITTEE REPORT, CONTINUED

JUDICIARY

HOUSE BILL NO. 2168	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE VINES	AS AMENDED #1
SENATE BILL NO. 718	DO PASS
BY SENATOR FILES	
SENATE BILL NO. 819	DO PASS
BY SENATOR CLARK	
SENATE BILL NO. 902	DO PASS
BY SENATOR CLARK	
SENATE BILL NO. 1048	DO PASS
BY SENATOR HUTCHINSON	
SENATE BILL NO. 1133	DO PASS
BY SENATOR HUTCHINSON	AS AMENDED #1

COMMITTEE REPORT

	April 5, 2013
PUBLIC HEALTH, WELFARE AND LABOR	JOHN BURRIS
	CHAIRPERSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 1486	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE MILLER	CONCUR IN SENATE
	AMENDMENT #1
HOUSE BILL NO. 1568	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE S. MEEKS	
HOUSE BILL NO. 2210	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE MALONE	
SENATE BILL NO. 850	DO PASS
BY SENATOR HENDREN	
SENATE BILL NO. 1116	DO PASS
BY SENATOR CALDWELL	
SENATE BILL NO. 1138	DO PASS
BY SENATOR CALDWELL	
SENATE BILL NO. 1174	DO PASS
BY SENATOR SAMPLE	

COMMITTEE REPORT

REVENUE AND TAXATION	April 5, 2013
	CHARLIE COLLINS
	CHAIRPERSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 1234	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE WILLIAMS	
SENATE BILL NO. 688	DO PASS
BY SENATOR TEAGUE	

COMMITTEE REPORT

AGING, CHILDREN AND YOUTH, LEGISLATIVE AND MILITARY AFFAIRS	April 5, 2013
	DAVID MEEKS
	CHAIRPERSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 1790	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE BROADAWAY	CONCUR IN SENATE
	AMENDMENT #1
HOUSE BILL NO. 1848	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE BROADAWAY	CONCUR IN SENATE
	AMENDMENT #1
SENATE BILL NO. 869	DO PASS
BY SENATOR ELLIOTT	AS AMENDED #1
SENATE BILL NO. 1005	DO PASS
BY SENATOR DISMANG	
SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 3	
BY SENATOR MALOCH	DO PASS

COMMITTEE REPORT

	April 5, 2013
AGRICULTURE, FORESTRY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT	MATTHEW SHEPHERD CHAIRPERSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 1536 BY REPRESENTATIVE ALEXANDER	DO PASS
SENATE BILL NO. 820 BY SENATOR BURNETT	DO PASS
SENATE BILL NO. 845 BY SENATOR KEY	DO PASS AS AMENDED #1
SENATE BILL NO. 1016 BY SENATOR STUBBLEFIELD	DO PASS

COMMITTEE REPORT

	April 5, 2013
CITY, COUNTY AND LOCAL AFFAIRS	DAVID FIELDING CHAIRPERSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 1773 BY REPRESENTATIVE COZART	DO PASS CONCUR IN SENATE AMENDMENT #1
HOUSE BILL NO. 1831 BY REPRESENTATIVE WILLIAMS	DO PASS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1978 BY REPRESENTATIVE MURDOCK	DO PASS
SENATE BILL NO. 215 BY SENATOR IRVIN	DO PASS
SENATE BILL NO. 530 BY SENATOR SAMPLE	DO PASS
SENATE BILL NO. 531 BY SENATOR SAMPLE	DO PASS
SENATE BILL NO. 861 BY SENATOR IRVIN	DO PASS
SENATE BILL NO. 989 BY SENATOR KING	DO PASS

COMMITTEE REPORT

	April 5, 2013
INSURANCE AND COMMERCE	TOMMY WREN CHAIRPERSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 1747 BY REPRESENTATIVE VINES	DO PASS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1748 BY REPRESENTATIVE VINES	DO PASS
HOUSE BILL NO. 2208 BY REPRESENTATIVE H. WILKINS	DO PASS
HOUSE BILL NO. 2281 BY REPRESENTATIVE C. DOUGLAS	DO PASS AS AMENDED #1
SENATE BILL NO. 871 BY SENATOR KEY	DO PASS AS AMENDED #1
SENATE BILL NO. 1071 BY SENATOR FILES	DO PASS

COMMITTEE REPORT

	April 5, 2013
INSURANCE AND COMMERCE	ROBERT DALE VICE CHAIRPERSON
SENATE BILL NO. 795 BY SENATOR RAPERT	DO PASS
SENATE BILL NO. 974 BY SENATOR DISMANG	DO PASS

COMMITTEE REPORT

	April 5, 2013
STATE AGENCIES AND GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS	ANDREA LEA CHAIRPERSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 1809 BY REPRESENTATIVE LOWERY	DO PASS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1840 BY REPRESENTATIVE WRIGHT	DO PASS AS AMENDED #2

COMMITTEE REPORT, CONTINUED

STATE AGENCIES AND GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS

HOUSE BILL NO. 1892	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE BELL	CONCUR IN SENATE AMENDMENT #1
HOUSE BILL NO. 2084	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE LEA	CONCUR IN SENATE AMENDMENT #1
HOUSE BILL NO. 2186	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE BELL	AS AMENDED #1
SENATE BILL NO. 251	DO PASS
BY SENATOR STUBBLEFIELD	
SENATE BILL NO. 865	DO PASS
BY SENATOR SAMPLE	
SENATE BILL NO. 866	DO PASS
BY SENATOR SAMPLE	AS AMENDED #1
SENATE BILL NO. 935	DO PASS
BY SENATOR HICKEY	
SENATE BILL NO. 1044	DO PASS
BY SENATOR CHESTERFIELD	
SENATE BILL NO. 1067	DO PASS
BY SENATOR ENGLISH	AS AMENDED #1
SENATE BILL NO. 1092	DO PASS
BY SENATOR ELLIOTT	
SENATE BILL NO. 1095	DO PASS
BY SENATOR ELLIOTT	

COMMITTEE REPORT

	April 5, 2013
STATE AGENCIES AND GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS	BUTCH WILKINS VICE CHAIRPERSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 1329	DO PASS
BY REPRESENTATIVE LEA	AS AMENDED #4
SENATE BILL NO. 973	DO PASS
BY SENATOR HENDREN	

COMMITTEE REPORT

JOINT COMMITTEE ON CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS HOUSE JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 1009 BY REPRESENTATIVE SABIN	April 5, 2013 ANDREA LEA CHAIRPERSON DO PASS AS AMENDED #3
--	--

Upon motion of Representative Payton, **HOUSE BILL NO. 2205** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 2205

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 2205** as engrossed,
H4/2/13 (version: 04/02/2013 09:41:42 AM)

Page 2, delete line 19 and substitute:

"person licensed under § 27-14-2001 if that person surrenders the certificate of title for the salvage vehicle to the office within thirty (30) days after assignment of the salvage vehicle and obtains a salvage vehicle title under this section; or"

AND

Page 2, line 32, delete "the insurer may" and substitute "the insurer or a person licensed under § 27-14-2001 may"

AND

Page 3, line 14, delete "27-14-2305(a)," and substitute "27-14-2305,"

AND

Page 3, delete lines 16 through 19 and substitute:

"title to motor vehicles, is amended to read as follows:

27-14-2305. Applicability of subchapter.

~~(a) The provisions of this subchapter shall not apply to motor vehicles more than seven (7) model years old prior to the calendar year of the occurrence.~~

~~(b) Any A title that is branded pursuant to under this subchapter shall retain the brand on the title for the life of the vehicle."~~

/s/ John Payton

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Harris, **HOUSE BILL NO. 1738** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1738

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1738** as originally introduced:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and substitute the following:

"SECTION 1. Arkansas Code § 6-11-101(a) and (b), concerning the membership of the State Board of Education, are amended to read as follows:

(a) The State Board of Education shall be composed of nine (9) members:

(1) Five (5) members shall be appointed as follows:

(A) One (1) member shall be appointed by the Governor;

(B) Two (2) members shall be appointed by the President Pro Tempore of the Senate; and

(C) Two (2) members shall be appointed by the Speaker of the House; and

~~(2)(A) Two (2) members to be selected~~ Four (4) members shall be elected, one (1) from each of the congressional districts of the state as they exist on the July 31, 2007; and

(B)(i) Two (2) elected member positions shall be filled at each general election in the manner required under the general election laws of this state,

(ii) A candidate for an elected member position shall file for office in the same manner required for a candidate for United States House of Representatives.

~~(2) One (1) member to be appointed at large from within the state.~~

~~(b)(1) The term of office of a member of the state board shall be for a single term of seven (7) years~~ Members of the state board shall serve staggered terms of four (4) years that begin on January 1 and end on December 31.

~~(2)(A) Any member appointed to the state board to fill a vacancy for an uncompleted term with less than three (3) years remaining on the original term may be reappointed to an additional term of seven (7) years.~~

~~(B) No member serving three (3) or more years on the state board may be reappointed.~~

(2) A member may be reappointed until the member has served a maximum of thirteen (13) years.

~~(3) No current or new member shall be allowed to resign in order to be appointed to a new term on the state board.~~

~~(4) Nothing in this section shall be construed to change the terms of any member of the state board who was appointed prior to June 3, 2004.~~

SECTION 2. Arkansas Code § 6-11-101(e)-(g), concerning the membership of the State Board of Education, are amended to read as follows:

(e) The members of the state board ~~shall be appointed by the Governor, subject to the confirmation of the Senate~~ and shall take the oath of office for officers prescribed by the Arkansas Constitution.

(f)(1) Whenever a vacancy occurs in the membership of the state board, ~~the Governor;~~

(A) If the vacancy is for an appointed position, the officer who made the original appointment shall appoint a successor who shall serve the remainder of the unexpired term of the member that he or she succeeded, subject to all other provisions of this section; and

(B) If the vacancy is for an elected position, the Governor shall appoint a successor who shall serve the remainder of the unexpired term.

(2) Resignation, removal from the ~~district from~~ position to which he or she is appointed, disqualification, incapacitation from mental or physical disability or otherwise, or change in status from the eligibility requirements for membership on the state board shall automatically create a vacancy in the membership of the state board, and ~~no such~~ the member shall not thereafter exercise any of the functions of membership on the state board even though his or her successor has not been appointed.

(g)(1) ~~Members~~ An appointed member of the state board shall be is subject to removal from office by the ~~Governor~~ officer who made the original appointment when the actions or condition of a member shall be considered as sufficient cause for removal.

(2) However, before a member may be removed for cause, this cause must have been accepted as true, good, and sufficient by a majority written vote of all members of the state board after a formal hearing at a regular or special session of the state board.

SECTION 3. TEMPORARY LANGUAGE. DO NOT CODIFY.

(a) The members of the State Board of Education serving on the effective date of this act shall continue to serve until their successors take the oath of office.

(b) The four (4) elected members shall be elected at the 2014 general election.

(c)(1) By September 1, 2013, the Governor, the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the President Pro Tempore of the Senate shall make the initial appointments required under this act to fill the positions of the five (5) board members who have served the longest.

(2) A current member of the state board may be appointed to begin a new term under this act.

(d)(1) At the first regular meeting at which the newly appointed members serve, the newly appointed members shall draw for staggered terms as follows:

(A) Two (2) members shall serve an initial term of two (2) calendar years; and

(B) Three (3) members shall serve an initial term of four (4) calendar years.

(2) At the first regular meeting of at which the elected members serve, the elected members shall draw for staggered terms as follows:

(A) Two (2) members serve an initial term of two (2) years; and

(B) Two (2) members shall serve an initial term of four (4) years.

(3) The terms of the newly appointed and newly elected members shall begin upon the taking of the oath of office and shall end on December 31 of the last calendar year of the term drawn by the member under this section."

/s/ Justin Harris

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Hammer, **HOUSE BILL NO. 1191** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1191

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1191** as originally introduced:

Page 1, delete lines 10 through 12, and substitute "ALLOW"

AND

Page 1, line 13, delete "INCLUDE DELINQUENT" and substitute "ASSESS A PENALTY TO BENEFIT CERTAIN FIRE DEPARTMENTS;"

AND

Page 1, delete lines 14 and 15

AND

Page 1, line 16, delete "TECHNICAL CHANGES;"

AND

Delete the subtitle in its entirety and substitute:

"TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL METHODS FOR COLLECTING DELINQUENT FIRE DEPARTMENT FEES AND DUES; AND TO ALLOW THE COMMISSIONER OF STATE LANDS TO ASSESS A PENALTY TO BENEFIT CERTAIN FIRE DEPARTMENTS."

AND

Delete everything after the enacting clause, and substitute the following:

"SECTION 1. Arkansas Code Title 26, Chapter 37, Subchapter 1, is amended to add an additional section to read as follows:

26-37-110. Penalty for delinquent fire department dues and fees — Grant program.

(a) If delinquent fire department dues and fees are owing on tax-delinquent land forfeited to the state and the delinquent fire department dues and fees have not been certified to the Commissioner of State Lands for collection, the Commissioner of State Lands may assess a penalty of no more than fifty dollars (\$50.00) in addition to any other fees and penalties allowed under this chapter.

(b) The purchaser or redeemer of the property shall be responsible for paying any penalty assessed under this section.

(c)(1) The Commissioner of State Lands shall use the funds collected under this section to establish and administer by rule a grant program, which shall be used to provide financial assistance to fire departments to be used exclusively to hire a consultant or temporary employee for the purpose of lowering the fire department's Public Protection Classification rating as determined by Insurance Services Office, Inc.

(2) The rules promulgated under this section are subject to the Administrative Procedure Act, § 25-15-201 et seq."

/s/ Kim Hammer

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Davis, **HOUSE BILL NO. 2231** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 2231

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 2231** as originally introduced:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and substitute:

"SECTION 1. Arkansas Code Title 16, Chapter 63, Subchapter 2, is amended to add a new section to read as follows:

16-63-222. Claim against licensed engineer — Preliminary expert opinion testimony — Certification.

(a) As used in this section:

(1) "Claim" means:

(A) A legal cause of action; or

(B) An affirmative defense to which all of the

following apply:

(i) The claim is asserted against a licensed engineer in a complaint, answer, cross-claim, counterclaim, or third-party complaint;

(ii) The claim is based on the licensed engineer's alleged breach of contract, negligence, misconduct, errors, or omissions in rendering professional engineering services; and

(iii) Expert testimony is necessary to prove the licensed engineer's standard of care or liability for the claim;

(2) "Expert" means a person who is qualified by knowledge, skill, experience, training, or education to express an opinion regarding a licensed engineer's standard of care or liability for the claim; and

(3) "Licensed engineer" means a person, corporation, professional corporation, partnership, limited liability company, limited liability partnership, or other entity that is licensed or registered by this state to practice engineering.

(b)(1) If a claim against a licensed engineer is asserted in a civil action, the claimant or the claimant's attorney shall certify in a written statement that is filed and served with the claim whether or not expert opinion testimony is necessary to prove the licensed engineer's standard of care or liability for the claim.

(2) If the claimant or the claimant's attorney certifies under this subsection that expert opinion testimony is necessary, the claimant shall serve a preliminary expert opinion affidavit with the initial disclosures that are required by the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure.

(3)(A) The claimant may provide affidavits from as many experts as the claimant considers necessary.

(B) The preliminary expert opinion affidavit shall contain at least the following information:

(i) The expert's qualifications to express an opinion on the licensed engineer's standard of care or liability for the claim;

(ii) The factual basis for each claim against a licensed engineer;

(iii) The licensed engineer's acts, errors, or omissions that the expert considers to be a violation of the applicable standard of care resulting in liability; and

(iv) The manner in which the licensed engineer's acts, errors, or omissions caused or contributed to the damages or other relief sought by the claimant.

(c)(1) The court may extend the time for compliance with this section on application and good cause shown or by stipulation of the parties to the claim.

(2) If the court extends the time for compliance, the court may also adjust the timing and sequence of disclosures that are required from the licensed engineer against whom the claim is asserted.

(d)(1) If the claimant or the claimant's attorney certifies that expert testimony is not required for its claim and the licensed engineer who is defending the claim disputes that certification in good faith, the licensed engineer may apply by motion to the court for an order requiring the claimant to obtain and serve a preliminary expert opinion affidavit under this section.

(2) In its motion under subdivision (d)(1) of this section, the licensed engineer shall identify the following:

(A) The claim for which the licensed engineer believes expert testimony is needed;

(B) The prima facie elements of the claim; and

(C) The legal or factual basis for its contention that expert opinion testimony is required to establish the standard of care or liability for the claim.

(e)(1) After considering the motion under subdivision (d)(1) of this section and any response, the court shall determine whether the claimant shall comply with this section and, if the court considers that compliance is necessary, shall set a date and terms for compliance.

(2) The court shall stay all other proceedings and applicable time periods concerning the claim pending the court's ruling on the motion.

(f) On its own motion or on the motion of the licensed engineer, the court shall dismiss the claim against the licensed engineer without prejudice if the claimant

fails to file and serve a preliminary expert opinion affidavit after the claimant or the claimant's attorney has certified that a preliminary expert opinion affidavit is necessary or the court has ordered the claimant to file and serve a preliminary expert opinion affidavit.

(g) A claimant may supplement a claim or preliminary expert opinion affidavit with additional claims, evidence, or expert opinions that are timely disclosed under the Arkansas Rules of Civil Procedure or under court order.

(h) This section does not preclude a party from using a preliminary expert opinion affidavit for any purpose, including impeachment."

/s/ Andy Davis

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Malone, **SENATE BILL NO. 755** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL NO. 755

Amend **SENATE BILL NO. 755** as engrossed,
S3/28/13 (version: 03/28/2013 02:32:57 PM)

Page 3, delete line 28 and substitute the following:

"caregiver course, but the number of hours of training shall not be modified.

(d) The training required under this subchapter may be certified by an employer if that employer maintains records regarding:

- (1) The identification of the employee who received training;
- (2) The topic for which the training was conducted; and
- (3) The amount of time spent on the training."

/s/ Stephanie Malone

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative S. Meeks, **HOUSE BILL NO. 1456** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1456

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1456** as originally introduced:

Page 2, line 18, delete "cost" and substitute "costs"

AND

Page 2, delete lines 21 and 22, and substitute the following:

"(i)(a) At the close of an annual billing cycle shall expire net excess generation accumulation period for net metering, which is from May 1 through April 30."

AND

Page 3, delete lines 2 through 5, and substitute the following:

"(c)(1) As used in this section, "avoided costs" means the same as defined in § 23-3-702.

(2) Avoided costs shall be determined under § 23-3-704.

(d)(1) Except as provided in subdivision (d)(2) of this section, an electric utility shall separately meter, bill, and credit each net-metering facility even if one (1) or more net-metering facilities are under common ownership.

(2) At the electric utility's discretion, an electric utility may apply net-metering credits from a net-metering facility to the bill for another meter location if the net-metering facility and the separate meter location are under common ownership."

/s/ Stephen Meeks

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Lowery, **HOUSE BILL NO. 1806** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1806

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1806** as originally introduced:
Page 2, line 8, delete "Gives false" and substitute "Knowingly gives false"

/s/ Mark Lowery

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Wren, **SENATE BILL NO. 1072** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL NO. 1072

Amend **SENATE BILL NO. 1072** as engrossed,
S4/2/13 (version: 04/02/2013 2:35:57 PM)

Delete everything after the enacting clause and substitute the following:

"SECTION 1. Arkansas Code § 27-35-210, concerning permits for special cargoes, is amended to add an additional subsection to read as follows:

(n) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the contrary and upon application and payment of a permit fee not to exceed five hundred dollars (\$500), the commission may issue a special permit valid for one (1) single trip or for a one-year period that authorizes the movement on state highways of a truck tractor and single semi-trailer combination with five (5) axles hauling animal feed to livestock or poultry, which exceeds the maximum gross weight as provided in § 27-35-203, with a tandem axle limit of thirty-six thousand five hundred pounds (36,500 lbs.) and a single axle limit of twenty thousand pounds (20,000), and a total gross weight of eighty-five thousand pounds (85,000 lbs.)."

/s/ Tommy Wren

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Neal, **HOUSE BILL NO. 1570** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1570

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1570** as originally introduced:

Delete the title of the bill in its entirety and substitute the following:

"AN ACT TO ESTABLISH A WEB PAGE TO PROVIDE A MENU OF LINKS TO EMPLOYER- RELATED STATE WEB APPLICATIONS FOR REQUIRED REPORTING; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES."

AND

Delete the subtitle in its entirety and substitute:

"TO ESTABLISH A WEB PAGE TO PROVIDE A MENU OF LINKS TO EMPLOYER-RELATED STATE WEB APPLICATIONS FOR REQUIRED REPORTING."

AND

Delete everything after the enacting clause and substitute the following:

"SECTION 1. DO NOT CODIFY. Purpose and intent.

The purpose of this act is to:

(1) Create a public web page to:

(A) Provide a menu of links to employer-related state web applications for required reporting, tax payments, and other data submissions; and

(B) Allow an employer to select a link based upon a desired type of function or application and be redirected to the appropriate agency web application; and

(2) Provide information about tax submissions, employment reports, and child support submissions on the respective agency sites, including without limitation due dates, payment options, and agency contact information.

SECTION 2. Arkansas Code § 25-8-110, concerning additional duties of the Department of Finance and Administration, is amended to add an additional subdivision to read as follows:

(6)(A) With assistance from the Department of Workforce Services, establish and maintain a web page to:

(i) Provide a menu of links to employer-related state web applications for required reporting, tax payments, and other data submissions;

(ii) Allow an employer to select a link based upon a desired type of function or application and be redirected to the appropriate agency web application; and

(iii) Provide information about tax submissions, employment reports, and child support submissions on the respective agency sites, including without limitation due dates, payment options, and agency contact information.

(B) The initial scope of the web page shall include links to:

(i) Online taxpayer services administered by the Department of Finance and Administration through the Arkansas Taxpayer Access Point web page;

(ii) Unemployment and new hire submissions administered by the Department of Workforce Services; and

(iii) Information concerning employer reporting and payment functions provided by the Office of Child Support Enforcement of the Revenue Division of the Department of Finance and Administration.

(C) The web page shall be designed with sufficient flexibility to allow additional links to other state agencies to be added as appropriate."

/s/ Micah Neal

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Edwards, **HOUSE BILL NO. 1921** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1921

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1921** as originally introduced:

Delete everything after the enacting clause, and substitute the following:

"SECTION 1. DO NOT CODIFY. Legislative findings and intent.

(a) The General Assembly finds that:

(1) Arkansas has the third largest inland waterway system in the United States and is thirty-fourth in waterway shipments;

(2) Each barge that travels on Arkansas's waterways reduces the number of trucks traveling on Arkansas's roadways by sixty (60), which reduces roadway congestion and highway maintenance costs; and

(3) Arkansas's waterways allow the state's agricultural industry to export crops around the world in a cost-effective manner.

(b) The General Assembly intends for this act to:

(1) Reduce traffic and improve safety on the roadways in Arkansas;

(2) Reduce the cost of maintaining Arkansas roadways; and

(3) Increase Arkansas's ability to be competitive in the worldwide economy.

SECTION 2. Arkansas Code Title 15, Chapter 23, Subchapter 2, is amended to add an additional section to read as follows:

15-23-205. Arkansas Port, Terminal, Intermodal, and Waterway Development Grant Program.

(a)(1) The Arkansas Waterways Commission shall establish and administer the Arkansas Port, Terminal, Intermodal, and Waterway Development Grant Program that shall be used to provide financial assistance to port authorities, private terminals, and intermodal authorities for the purpose of funding port development projects, including without limitation the construction, improvement, capital facility rehabilitation, and expansion of a public or private port facility, including without limitation an intermodal facility and a maritime-related industrial park infrastructure development.

(2) Wharves, cargo handling equipment, utilities, railroads, primary access roads, and buildings that are an integral part of a port development project are also eligible for funding under this section.

(b) The goals of the program are to:

(1) Ensure that adequate land-side facilities are available to meet a definite market need by providing guidance and public funds to build land-side infrastructure that will provide jobs and competitive transportation costs for moving cargo, thereby minimizing highway congestion, improving safety, and reducing maintenance costs related to Arkansas's highways; and

(2) Provide funding for dredging ports and waterways to allow Arkansas products to reach additional markets.

(c) An Arkansas public port authority, private terminal, or intermodal authority may apply for funding of a port development project under the program.

(d)(1) To apply for funding under the program, a port authority, private terminal, or intermodal authority shall submit an application for funding to the commission on or before June 1 for funding consideration in the following fiscal year.

(2) The application required under subdivision (d)(1) of this section shall include the following:

- (A) A description of the port development project;
- (B) Evidence that the port authority, private terminal, or intermodal authority has an immediate need for the port development project;
- (C) A description of the benefits to be derived from the port development project;
- (D) A preliminary design of the port development project;
- (E) A cost estimate for the port development project;
- (F) A description of the port development project area; and
- (G) Any other information or documentation required by the commission.

(e) The funding provided under the program shall not exceed ninety percent (90%) of the cost of construction or fifty percent (50%) of the dredging costs.

(f) The commission shall promulgate rules to implement this section.

SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE. This act is effective on and after January 1, 2014."

/s/ John C. Edwards

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Bell, **HOUSE BILL NO. 2078** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 2078

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 2078** as originally introduced:

Page 1, delete line 9 and substitute the following:

"ZONING DISTRICT COMMISSION; TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES."

AND

Delete the subtitle in its entirety and substitute:

"TO AMEND ARKANSAS LAW CONCERNING THE
CAPITOL ZONING DISTRICT COMMISSION; AND
TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY."

AND

Delete everything following the enacting clause and substitute the following:

"SECTION 1. NOT TO BE CODIFIED. The Capitol Zoning District Commission is abolished on July 1, 2013.

SECTION 2. Arkansas Code § 22-2-120 is amended to read as follows:

22-2-120. Exemption from statutes concerning Capitol Zoning District.

(a) The construction, acquisition, management, maintenance, or operation of capital improvements and public buildings by the Arkansas Building Authority under this chapter is declared to be exempt from the operation and implementation of the provisions of §§ 22-3-301 — 22-3-311.

~~(b) The Arkansas Building Authority Council shall endeavor to cooperate with the Capitol Zoning District Commission so as to establish coordinated physical development in the State Capitol area and to promote the uniform and appropriate regulation and development of the State Capitol area.~~

SECTION 3. Arkansas Code § 22-3-215(c)(2), concerning a Vietnam Veteran's Monument, is amended to read as follows:

(2) The committee shall meet at such times as it shall determine to be necessary to select a design and site for the Vietnam Veterans' Monument to be erected and maintained on the State Capitol grounds, which design and site shall be subject to the approval of the ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission created by § 22-3-303 or its successor~~ Secretary of State.

SECTION 4. Arkansas Code § 22-3-216(c)(2), concerning a Law Enforcement Officers' Memorial, is amended to read as follows:

(2) The committee shall meet at such times as it shall determine to be necessary to select a design and site for the memorial to be erected and maintained on the State Capitol grounds. The design and site shall be subject to the approval of the ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission created by § 22-3-303 or its successor~~ Secretary of State.

SECTION 5. Arkansas Code § 22-3-219(c)(3), concerning a monument to honor veterans of twentieth-century wars, is amended to read as follows:

(3) The design and site selection shall be subject to the approval of the ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission created under § 22-3-301 et seq.~~ Secretary of State.

SECTION 6. Arkansas Code § 22-3-303 is repealed.

~~22-3-303. Capitol Zoning District Commission.~~

~~(a) There is created and established at the seat of government a commission to be known as the Capitol Zoning District Commission.~~

~~(b) The commission shall have nine (9) members, as follows:~~

~~(1) The Governor, or his or her designee, who shall be chair;~~

~~(2) The Secretary of State, or his or her designee;~~

~~(3) Four (4) resident electors of this state, to be designated by the Governor and who shall serve three-year terms, one (1) of whom shall be a black;~~

~~(4) The Director of the City Planning staff of the City of Little Rock, or his or her designee;~~

~~(5) One (1) resident elector of this state who shall be a resident of and an owner of property within the Governor's Mansion area of the Capitol Zoning District, to be designated by the Governor, and who shall serve a three-year term; and~~

~~(6) One (1) resident elector of this state who shall be an owner of property or the designee of an owner of property within the State Capitol area of the Capitol Zoning District, to be designated by the Governor, and who shall serve a three-year term.~~

~~(c) The Director of the Capitol Zoning District Commission shall serve as the disbursing officer for the commission.~~

~~(d) Members of the commission shall receive no pay for their services, but may receive expense reimbursement and stipends in accordance with § 25-16-901 et seq.~~

~~(e)(1) The commission is authorized to employ a director and such other staff as the commission deems appropriate and within legislative appropriation.~~

~~(2) The commission shall have the authority to enter into contracts of any lawful nature, and to do any and all acts necessary to effect the purposes of this subchapter.~~

SECTION 7. Arkansas Code § 22-3-304 is amended to read as follows:

22-3-304. Zoning authority of ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission.~~

The ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission~~ City of Little Rock is authorized broad scope in its zoning authority to include, but not be limited to, the following:

(1) Restrictions on the height, number of stories, and size of buildings;

(2) Percentage of lots that may be occupied;

(3) Use of structures and land;

(4) Population density;

(5) Amount of open space;

(6) Parking areas; ~~and~~

(7) Restriction of noisy and polluting processes or those endangering the health and safety of the citizens of the ~~zoning district~~ Capitol Zoning District; and

(8)(A) Except as provided in subdivision (8)(B) of this section, restrictions on the height of front yard fences in the district.

(B) The city shall neither enact nor enforce an ordinance or guideline that restricts the construction of front yard fences in the district to a maximum height of less than forty-eight inches (48").

SECTION 8. Arkansas Code § 22-3-305 is amended to read as follows:

22-3-305. Master plan.

(a) The ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission~~ City of Little Rock, using professional and technical assistance as it deems necessary, shall make, adopt, maintain, and revise, from time to time, an official master comprehensive plan for the Capitol Zoning District for the purpose of bringing about coordinated physical development in accordance with the present and future needs of the district.

(b) The master plan will be developed so as to preserve the dignity of the Capitol Building and Governor's Mansion, ensure efficient expenditure of public funds, and promote the safety, convenience, and general well-being of the district's inhabitants and property owners.

(c) The master plan should include, among other things, regulations relative to the location and character of roads and other transportation routes, utility services, parks, buildings, and other construction within the district.

(d) The ~~commission~~ city may adopt the plan in whole or in part and may subsequently amend the adopted plan in whole or in part.

(e) After the adoption of the master comprehensive plan, the ~~commission~~ city shall file a copy with the office of the Secretary of State for the inspection of the public.

SECTION 9. Arkansas Code § 22-3-306 is amended to read as follows:

22-3-306. Authority of ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission~~ over property within Capitol Zoning District — Permits.

(a) After the adoption of the comprehensive master zoning plan, the ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission~~ City of Little Rock shall have exclusive authority over the zoning and regulation of the utilization of all property within the Capitol Zoning District, and no planning or zoning authority or jurisdiction of any subdivision of the state shall have any zoning or control authority except as agreed upon by the ~~commission~~ city.

(b)(1) After the adoption by the ~~commission~~ city of the comprehensive master zoning plan, the ~~commission~~ city shall have the authority to approve or disapprove the location and design of any improvements to be placed upon any land within the

district, and no improvements shall be placed upon any land within the district unless the design and proposed location shall be approved by the ~~commission~~ city.

(2) Such improvements shall include, but not be limited to, buildings, including additions and alterations, parking lots and facilities, and all other construction whatsoever, except that the word "improvements" shall not include existing streets, alleys, or utilities and shall not include maintenance, service, or improvement thereof.

(c) After the adoption by the ~~commission~~ city of the comprehensive master zoning plan, no improvement of any nature nor any change of land use shall commence within the district without a permit issued by the ~~commission~~ city.

(d) Within the district, a legally existing use, building, or structure that exists at the time of the adoption of the plans and regulations authorized by this subchapter, but not in conformity with such plans and regulations, may be continued but shall not be extended or structurally altered without the approval of the ~~commission~~ city.

SECTION 10. Arkansas Code § 22-3-307 is amended to read as follows:

22-3-307. ~~Adoption of rules and regulations~~ ordinances ~~by Capitol Zoning District Commission.~~

(a) ~~The Capitol Zoning District Commission~~ City of Little Rock ~~shall have the power and authority to prescribe~~ may adopt ~~such rules and regulations~~ ordinances concerning procedure before it and concerning the exercise of its functions and duties under this subchapter as it shall deem proper.

~~(b) Prior to the adoption of any zoning regulations or amendments thereto, the commission shall hold a public hearing thereon pursuant to the regulations of the Arkansas Administrative Procedure Act, § 25-15-201 et seq.~~

SECTION 11. Arkansas Code § 22-3-308 is repealed.

~~22-3-308. Coordination by Capitol Zoning District Commission with other agencies.~~

~~(a) The Capitol Zoning District Commission is authorized and encouraged to coordinate the comprehensive master zoning plan, to the greatest extent it deems practical, with city, county, and other area planning agencies.~~

~~(b)(1) Subject to the requirements of due process and consistent with any applicable federal restrictions and regulations as in effect on January 1, 2011, the commission may enter into agreements with the City of Little Rock providing for mutual cooperation and joint regulation within the Capitol Zoning District with respect to planning and zoning; permission to build upon or otherwise use land; the enforcement through stop work orders, citations, fines, and inspection to ensure~~

~~compliance of building, safety, zoning, and health codes; and other matters within the jurisdiction of the commission.~~

~~(2) An agreement under subdivision (b)(1) of this section between the City of Little Rock and the commission may not cede the commission's final authority and responsibility over the matters entrusted to it by law.~~

SECTION 12. Arkansas Code § 22-3-309 is repealed.

~~22-3-309. Capitol Zoning District Commission's power to institute and defend legal actions.~~

~~(a) The Capitol Zoning District Commission shall constitute a body corporate for purposes of instituting and defending litigation to enforce its rules, regulations, decisions, and orders; and it may, in its name, institute or defend actions in its own behalf, or in behalf of the owner or owners of any property within the district, to enjoin any breach or violation thereof.~~

~~(b) No bond shall be required of the commission in any action for the issuance of any temporary or permanent order, or on an appeal.~~

~~(c) The Attorney General shall be the legal adviser to the commission in the same capacity as he or she is to other boards and commissions.~~

SECTION 13. Arkansas Code § 22-3-310 is amended to read as follows:

22-3-310. Appeal of Capitol Zoning District Commission action.

(a) Any person aggrieved by any ~~rule, regulation~~ ordinance, decision, or order of the ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission~~ City of Little Rock under this subchapter may appeal the action to the Circuit Court of Pulaski County.

(b) The filing of an appeal shall in no respect suspend the operation of any ~~rule, regulation~~ ordinance, decision, or order, nor shall the circuit court order any suspension without a full hearing.

SECTION 14. Arkansas Code § 22-3-311 is amended to read as follows:

~~22-3-311. Report by Capitol Zoning District Commission City to Legislative Council.~~

The ~~Capitol Zoning District Commission~~ City of Little Rock shall submit a written summary of its actions and progress to the Legislative Council as requested by that council.

SECTION 15. Arkansas Code § 22-3-312 is amended to read as follows:

22-3-312. Sale of property within Capitol Zoning District — Notice.

(a) A person who sells real property within the Capitol Zoning District shall notify the purchaser that the real property is within the district and shall provide the purchaser with a summary of the ~~Capital Zoning District Commission's~~ City of Little Rock's restrictions on property in the district and the duties and responsibilities of owners of property in the district.

(b) The summary required by this section shall be prepared by the commission city.

SECTION 16. Arkansas Code § 22-3-313 is repealed.

~~22-3-313. Capitol Zoning District Commission — Powers.~~

~~(a) Effective July 1, 1997, the Director of the Department of Finance and Administration, as Chief Fiscal Officer of the State, shall transfer all authority and responsibility of the Arkansas Building Authority and the Director of the Arkansas Building Authority with respect to the Capitol Zoning District Commission to the Capitol Zoning District Commission and to the Director of the Capitol Zoning District Commission.~~

~~(b) The commission and its staff shall be a separate and distinct agency of government.~~

SECTION 17. Arkansas Code § 22-3-504(b)(3), concerning requests to the Capitol Arts and Grounds Commission, is amended to read as follows:

(3) Sufficient information to demonstrate consistency of the project with zoning regulations of the Capitol Zoning District Commission City of Little Rock pertaining to the Capitol Zoning District.

SECTION 18. Arkansas Code § 22-3-1506 is amended to read as follows:

22-3-1506. Exceptions.

The provisions of § 22-3-301 et seq., pertaining to the Capitol Zoning District Commission, § 22-3-401 et seq., pertaining to the Capitol Parking Control Committee, § 22-3-501 et seq., pertaining to the Capitol Arts and Grounds Commission, and § 22-3-202, pertaining to the Secretary of State, or any other provision of law inconsistent with the intent of this subchapter shall not be applicable to the Arkansas Building Authority in connection with the parking facilities contemplated by this subchapter, and no filings, consents, or approvals shall be required from any agency of the state prior to the construction, renovation, or repair of parking facilities or concerning the operations thereof.

SECTION 19. Arkansas Code § 25-16-903(13), concerning stipends for members of certain boards and commissions, is repealed.

~~(13) Capitol Zoning District Commission;~~

SECTION 20. NOT TO BE CODIFIED. (a) Within ninety (90) days of the effective date of this act, the City of Little Rock shall adopt in an appropriate manner the master plan and rules of the Capitol Zoning District Commission as existing on January 1, 2013.

(b) After adopting in an appropriate manner the master plan and rules of the commission under subsection (a) of this section, the city may revise the content of the master plan and rules as necessary.

(c) The master plan and rules of the Capitol Zoning District Commission shall remain in effect until the adoption of the master plan and rules by the City of Little Rock under subsection (a) of this section.

SECTION 21. NOT TO BE CODIFIED. Any appropriations for the benefit of the Capitol Zoning District Commission, including without limitation appropriations for personal services and operating expenses, shall be null and void upon the effective date of this act.

SECTION 22. EMERGENCY CLAUSE. It is found and determined by the General Assembly of the State of Arkansas that this act abolishes the Capitol Zoning District Commission and that the ideal time for this action is at the beginning of the state's fiscal year. Therefore, an emergency is declared to exist, and this act being necessary for the preservation of the public peace, health, and safety shall become effective on July 1, 2013."

/s/ J. Nate Bell

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Sabin, **HOUSE BILL NO. 1927** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1927

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1927** as originally introduced:

Page 1, delete lines 26 through 36 and substitute:

"6-16-135. ~~Personal~~ Economics and personal finance course content.

(a) The Department of Education, in consultation with the ~~Department of Workforce Education~~ Department of Career Education, subject to the approval of the State Board of Education, shall develop economics and personal finance course content guidelines and recommend textbooks to be used in an economics course or a personal finance course.

(b) ~~The course content shall include, but not be limited to, household budgets creation, checking accounts maintenance, basic consumer finance, debt~~

management, credit management, insurance, and taxes. By the 2014-2015 school year, the course content guidelines for the economics credit required for high school graduation shall include the following material concerning personal finance:

AND

Page 2, delete lines 1 through 8

AND

Page 2, delete lines 15 through 18 and substitute:

"(A) Household budget creation;

(B) Checking account maintenance;

(C) Insurance; and"

AND

Page 2, delete lines 35 and 36

AND

Page 3, delete lines 1 through 13

/s/ Warwick Sabin

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks

Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Hodges, **HOUSE BILL NO. 1870** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 4 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1870

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1870** as engrossed,

H4/4/13 (version: 04/04/2013 10:26:41 AM)

Add Representatives Love, W. Wagner as cosponsors of the bill

/s/ Monte Hodges

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks

Chief Clerk

The House gave Representative Sabin unanimous leave to withdraw **HOUSE BILL NO. 1928**. Recommended Committee study by the Committee on INSURANCE AND COMMERCE.

The House gave Representative Sabin unanimous leave to withdraw **HOUSE BILL NO. 1390**. Recommended Committee study by the Committee on JOINT COMMITTEE ON ENERGY.

The House gave Representative Lea unanimous leave to withdraw **HOUSE BILL NO. 1824**. Recommended Committee study by the Committee on STATE AGENCIES AND GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS.

The House gave Representative Lea unanimous leave to withdraw **HOUSE BILL NO. 1825**. Recommended Committee study by the Committee on STATE AGENCIES AND GOVERNMENTAL AFFAIRS.

The House gave Representative Lea unanimous leave to withdraw **HOUSE BILL NO. 1862**. Recommended Committee study by the Committee on EDUCATION.

The House gave Representative Lea unanimous leave to withdraw **HOUSE BILL NO. 2082**. Recommended Committee study by the Committee on HOUSE RULES.

The House gave Representative Richey unanimous leave to withdraw **HOUSE BILL NO. 1876**.

ENGROSSED BILL REPORTS

DAVY CARTER, CHAIRPERSON

April 5, 2013

The following bill(s) reported correctly engrossed:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1072 BY REPRESENTATIVE WREN
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1191 - TITLE - BY REPRESENTATIVE HAMMER
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1456 BY REPRESENTATIVE S. MEEKS
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1570 - TITLE - BY REPRESENTATIVE NEAL
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1738 BY REPRESENTATIVE HARRIS
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1806 BY REPRESENTATIVE LOWERY
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1870 - TITLE - BY REPRESENTATIVE HODGES
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1921 BY REPRESENTATIVE EDWARDS
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1927 BY REPRESENTATIVE SABIN
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2036 BY REPRESENTATIVE SLINKARD
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2078 - TITLE - BY REPRESENTATIVE BELL
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2231 BY REPRESENTATIVE DAVIS
 HOUSE BILL NO. 2205 BY REPRESENTATIVE PAYTON
 SENATE BILL NO. 33 - TITLE - BY SENATOR ELLIOTT (CATLETT)
 SENATE BILL NO. 442 BY SENATOR ELLIOTT (FITE)
 SENATE BILL NO. 755 BY SENATOR BLEDSOE (MALONE)

HOUSE BILL ENGROSSED AS TITLE AMENDED
 HOUSE BILL NO. 1191

BY: REPRESENTATIVE HAMMER

A BILL FOR AN ACT TO BE ENTITLED AN ACT TO PROVIDE ADDITIONAL METHODS FOR COLLECTING DELINQUENT RURAL FIRE DEPARTMENT DUES AND FEES; TO ALLOW THE COMMISSIONER OF STATE LANDS TO ASSESS A PENALTY TO BENEFIT CERTAIN FIRE DEPARTMENTS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

HOUSE BILL ENGROSSED AS TITLE AMENDED
HOUSE BILL NO. 1570

BY: REPRESENTATIVE NEAL

A BILL FOR AN ACT TO BE ENTITLED AN ACT TO ESTABLISH A WEB PAGE TO PROVIDE A MENU OF LINKS TO EMPLOYER- RELATED STATE WEB APPLICATIONS FOR REQUIRED REPORTING; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

HOUSE BILL ENGROSSED AS TITLE AMENDED
HOUSE BILL NO. 1870

BY: REPRESENTATIVES HODGES, C. ARMSTRONG, BAINE, BALTZ, CARTER, CATLETT, COPENHAVER, J. EDWARDS, FERGUSON, HAWTHORNE, HILLMAN, JULIAN, KIZZIA, LAMPKIN, LEDING, LENDERMAN, MAGIE, MAYBERRY, MCCRARY, MCGILL, MURDOCK, PERRY, RATLIFF, RICHEY, SABIN, F. SMITH, STEEL, T. THOMPSON, WARDLAW, B. WILKINS, WREN, WRIGHT, LOVE, W. WAGNER

BY: SENATORS BURNETT, E. CHEATHAM, L. CHESTERFIELD

A BILL FOR AN ACT TO BE ENTITLED AN ACT CONCERNING AMENDMENT 82 TO THE ARKANSAS CONSTITUTION AS IT RELATES TO A STEEL MILL PROJECT; TO DECLARE A LARGE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT TO BE A QUALIFIED AMENDMENT 82 PROJECT; TO AUTHORIZE THE ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS UNDER AMENDMENT 82 TO THE ARKANSAS CONSTITUTION TO ASSIST IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF A STEEL MILL PROJECT; TO APPROVE AND AUTHORIZE THE EXECUTION OF AN AMENDMENT 82 AGREEMENT; TO PROVIDE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVES TO QUALIFIED MANUFACTURERS OF STEEL UNDER AMENDMENT 82 TO THE ARKANSAS CONSTITUTION; TO ADDRESS CONDITIONAL GRANT REPAYMENT REQUIREMENTS; TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

HOUSE BILL ENGROSSED AS TITLE AMENDED
HOUSE BILL NO. 2078

BY: REPRESENTATIVE BELL

A BILL FOR AN ACT TO BE ENTITLED AN ACT TO AMEND ARKANSAS LAW CONCERNING THE CAPITOL ZONING DISTRICT COMMISSION; TO DECLARE AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

SENATE BILL ENGROSSED AS TITLE AMENDED
SENATE BILL NO. 33

BY: SENATORS ELLIOTT, J. KEY, CALDWELL, A. CLARK, RAPERT, K. INGRAM, L. CHESTERFIELD, U. LINDSEY, D. JOHNSON, R. THOMPSON, MALOCH, TEAGUE, B. PIERCE, HESTER, E. CHEATHAM, BOOKOUT

BY: REPRESENTATIVES CATLETT, BROADAWAY, LENDERMAN, H. WILKINS, C. ARMSTRONG, E. ARMSTRONG, MCELROY, LOVE, STEEL, WREN, VINES, HODGES, MURDOCK, FIELDING

A BILL FOR AN ACT TO BE ENTITLED AN ACT TO ENSURE THAT CHILDREN WITH DYSLEXIA HAVE THEIR NEEDS MET BY THE PUBLIC SCHOOL SYSTEM; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

Upon motion of Representative Bell, **HOUSE BILL NO. 2036** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 2036

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 2036** as engrossed,
H3/25/13 (version: 03/25/2013 2:04:45 PM)

Page 2, line 36, add the following:

"SECTION 2. Arkansas Code § 7-7-205 is amended to read as follows:

7-7-205. Petition requirements for new political parties.

(a)(1) A group desiring to form a new political party shall do so by filing a petition with the Secretary of State.

(2) The petition shall contain at the time of filing the signatures of at least ten thousand (10,000) registered voters in the state.

(3) The Secretary of State shall not accept for filing any new party petition that is not prima facie sufficient at the time of filing.

(4)(A) No signature shall be counted unless the date of the signature appears on the petition.

(B) No signature that is dated more than ninety (90) days before the date the petition is submitted shall be counted.

(5)(A) The petition shall declare the intent of organizing a political party, the name of which shall be stated in the declaration.

(B) No political party or group shall assume a name or designation that is so familiar, in the opinion of the Secretary of State, as to confuse or mislead the voters at an election.

(6) A new political party that wishes to select nominees for the next general election shall file a sufficient petition no later than ~~forty five (45)~~ sixty (60) days before the ~~preferential primary election~~ party filing period.

(b)(1) The Secretary of State shall determine the sufficiency of the signatures submitted within thirty (30) days of filing.

(2) If the petition is determined to be insufficient, the Secretary of State shall forthwith notify the sponsors in writing, through their designated agent, and shall set forth his or her reasons for so finding.

(c)(1) Upon certification of sufficiency of the petition by the Secretary of State, a new political party shall be declared by the Secretary of State.

(2) A new political party formed by the petition process shall nominate candidates by convention for the first general election after certification.

(3) A candidate nominated by convention shall file a political practices pledge with the Secretary of State or county clerk, as the case may be, ~~no later than noon of the date of the preferential primary election~~ during the party filing period.

(4) If the new party maintains party status by obtaining three percent (3%) of the total vote cast for the office of Governor or nominees for presidential electors at the first general election after certification, the new political party shall nominate candidates in the party primary as set forth in § 7-7-101 et seq.

(5) Any challenges to the certification of the sufficiency of the petition by the Secretary of State shall be filed with the Pulaski County Circuit Court."

/s/ J. Nate Bell

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Fite, **SENATE BILL NO. 442** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL NO. 442

Amend **SENATE BILL NO. 442** as engrossed,
S3/12/13 (version: 03/12/2013 10:37:03 AM)

Add Representative Fite as a cosponsor of the bill

AND

Page 7, line 2, delete "After" and substitute "(a) After"

AND

Page 7, line 12, delete "and"

AND

Page 7, delete line 14 and substitute the following:

"interpreters; and

(5) Establish reasonable fees for licensure and renewal of licensure.

(b) Before a rule is promulgated under this subchapter, the proposed rule shall be presented to the Legislative Council."

/s/ Charlene Fite

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Upon motion of Representative Catlett, **SENATE BILL NO. 33** was placed back on second reading for the purpose of amendment.

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL NO. 33

Amend **SENATE BILL NO. 33** as engrossed,
S3/28/13 (version: 03/28/2013 02:48:08 PM)

Add Senator Bookout as a cosponsor of the bill

AND

Page 1, line 33, delete "having dyslexia" and substitute "having markers of dyslexia"

AND

Page 2, line 35, delete "three (K-3)" and substitute "two (K-2)"

AND

Page 3, line 11, delete "three (K-3)" and substitute "two (K-2)"

AND

Page 3, line 12, delete "three (K-" and substitute "two (K-2)"

AND

Page 3, line 13, delete "3)"

AND

Page 3, line 14, delete "four (4)" and substitute "three (3)"

AND

Page 3, line 23, delete "three (K-3)" and substitute "two (K-2)"

AND

Page 3, line 27, delete "student needs" and substitute "student has markers for dyslexia and needs"

AND

Page 4, delete lines 23 and 24 and substitute:

“(i) Licensed psychological examiner;

(ii) School psychology specialist.”

AND

Page 6, delete lines 8 through 10 and substitute:

“(c)(1) The department shall ensure that at least one (1) staff member at each education service cooperative is trained as a dyslexia specialist to provide necessary information and support to school districts.

(2) A dyslexia specialist shall have completed training and received certification from a program approved by the department.”

AND

Page 6, delete lines 12 through 14 and substitute:

“have individuals to serve as dyslexia interventionists as defined in the Dyslexia Resource Guide who are trained as dyslexia interventionists:

(1) By the department; or

(2) Using other dyslexia training programs approved by the department.”

/s/ John W. Catlett

The Amendment was read and adopted by more than 51 votes.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks

Chief Clerk

Morning Hour Expired.

Representative Gillam moved that the House concur in the following Senate Amendment.

ARKANSAS SENATE

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1297

Amend **HOUSE BILL NO. 1297** as originally introduced:

Add Senator Rapert as a cosponsor of the bill

AND

Page 2, delete line 16, and substitute:

"funding.

(c) An institution accredited under subsection (b) of this section shall:

(1) Notify students in writing that courses completed and a degree obtained at the institution are not transferable to an institution of higher education accredited through the United States Department of Education; and

(2)(A) Obtain the student's signature acknowledging that the student has been informed and understands the notification.

(B) The institution shall maintain the acknowledgment signed by the student as part of the student's record."

/s/ Jason Rapert

The Amendment was read and the vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: Alexander, C. Armstrong, E. Armstrong, Baine, Ballinger, Baltz, Barnett, Bell, Biviano, Bragg, Branscum, Broadaway, J. Burris, Carnine, Catlett, Clemmer, Collins, Copenhaver, Dale, Davis, Deffenbaugh, J. Dickinson, Dotson, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Farrer, Ferguson, Fielding, Fite, Gillam, Gossage, Hammer, Harris, Hawthorne, Hickerson, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, House, Hutchison, Jean, Julian, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, Leding, Lenderman, Linck, Love, Lowery, Magie, S. Malone, Mayberry, McCrary, McGill, McLean, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Miller, Murdock, Neal, Nickels, B. Overbey, Payton, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Slinkard, F. Smith, Steel, Talley, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, Westerman, D. Whitaker, B. Wilkins, Williams, Womack, Wren, Wright.

Total82

NEGATIVE:

Total0

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, Baird, Cozart, C. Douglas, D. Douglas, Hillman, Jett, Lea, McElroy, Richey, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Walker, Wardlaw, H. Wilkins, Word, Mr. Speaker.

Total18

VOTING PRESENT:

Total0

Total number of votes cast.....82

Total number voting in the affirmative82

Necessary to concur in the amendment.....51

So the Amendment was concurred in.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk

Representative Hammer moved that the House concur in the following Senate Amendment.

ARKANSAS SENATE

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1867

Amend HOUSE BILL NO. 1867 as engrossed,
H3/18/13 (version: 03/18/2013 10:40:33 AM)

Add Senator J. Hutchinson as a cosponsor of the bill

/s/ Jeremy Hutchinson

The Amendment was read and the vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: Alexander, C. Armstrong, E. Armstrong, Baine, Ballinger, Baltz, Barnett, Bell, Biviano, Bragg, Branscum, Broadaway, J. Burris, Carnine, Catlett, Clemmer, Collins, Copenhaver, Dale, Davis, Deffenbaugh, J. Dickinson, Dotson, C. Douglas, D. Douglas, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Farrer, Ferguson, Fielding, Fite, Gillam, Gossage, Hammer, Harris, Hawthorne, Hickerson, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, House, Hutchison, Jean, Julian, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, Leding, Lenderman, Linck, Love, Lowery, Magie, S. Malone, Mayberry, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, McLean, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Miller, Murdock, Neal, Nickels, B. Overbey, Payton, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Scott, Shepherd, Slinkard, F. Smith, Steel, Talley, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, Wardlaw, Westerman, D. Whitaker, Williams, Womack, Wren, Wright.

Total87

NEGATIVE:

Total0

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, Baird, Cozart, Hillman, Jett, Lea, Richey, Sabin, Walker, B. Wilkins, H. Wilkins, Word, Mr. Speaker.

Total13

VOTING PRESENT:

Total0

Total number of votes cast87

Total number voting in the affirmative87

Necessary to concur in the amendment.....51

So the Amendment was concurred in.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks

Chief Clerk

Representative Fite moved that the House concur in the following Senate Amendment.

ARKANSAS SENATE

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL NO. 2146

Amend HOUSE BILL NO. 2146 as engrossed,
H3/27/13 (version: 03/27/2013 11:30:47 AM)

Add Senator J. Woods as a cosponsor of the bill

/s/ Jon Woods

The Amendment was read and the vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: Alexander, C. Armstrong, E. Armstrong, Baine, Ballinger, Baltz, Barnett, Bell, Biviano, Bragg, Branscum, Broadaway, J. Burris, Carnine, Catlett, Clemmer, Collins, Copenhaver, Dale, Davis, Deffenbaugh, J. Dickinson, Dotson, C. Douglas, D. Douglas, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Farrer, Ferguson, Fielding, Fite, Gillam, Gossage, Hammer, Harris, Hawthorne, Hickerson, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, House, Hutchison, Jean, Jett, Julian, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, Lea, Leding, Lenderman, Linck, Love, Lowery, Magie, S. Malone, Mayberry, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, McLean, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Miller, Murdock, Neal, B. Overbey, Payton, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Slinkard, F. Smith, Steel, Talley, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, Wardlaw, Westerman, D. Whitaker, B. Wilkins, Williams, Womack, Wren, Wright.

Total90

NEGATIVE:

Total0

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, Baird, Cozart, Hillman, Nickels, Richey, Walker, H. Wilkins, Word, Mr. Speaker.

Total10

VOTING PRESENT:

Total0

Total number of votes cast90

Total number voting in the affirmative90

Necessary to concur in the amendment.....51

So the Amendment was concurred in.

/s/ Mrs. Sherri Stacks

Chief Clerk

Representative Wardlaw moved for reconsideration of **SENATE BILL NO. 1075**. The vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: E. Armstrong, Baine, Baltz, Barnett, Broadaway, Carnine, Copenhaver, Dale, Davis, Deffenbaugh, D. Douglas, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Ferguson, Fielding, Gillam, Gossage, Hawthorne, Hickerson, Hillman, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, Jean, Jett, Kerr, Kizzia, Lea, Leding, Lenderman, Love, Lowery, Magie, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, Murdock, Neal, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Richey, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Slinkard, F. Smith, Steel, Talley, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, Walker, Wardlaw, D. Whitaker, Williams, Womack, Wren, Wright.

Total60

NEGATIVE: Alexander, Baird, Ballinger, Bell, Biviano, Bragg, Catlett, C. Douglas, Farrer, Fite, Hammer, Harris, House, Hutchison, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Payton, Westerman, B. Wilkins.

Total19

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, C. Armstrong, Branscum, J. Burris, Clemmer, Collins, Cozart, J. Dickinson, Dotson, Julian, Lampkin, Linck, S. Malone, Mayberry, McLean, Miller, Nickels, B. Overbey, H. Wilkins, Word, Mr. Speaker.

Total21

VOTING PRESENT:

Total0

Total number of votes cast79

Total number voting in the affirmative60

Necessary to the adoption of the motion40

So the Motion was adopted.

SENATE BILL NO. 1075

BY: SENATOR FILES

Was read the third time and placed on final passage, the question being shall the Bill pass. The vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: E. Armstrong, Baine, Barnett, Broadway, Carnine, Dale, Davis, Deffenbaugh, D. Douglas, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Fielding, Gillam, Gossage, Hawthorne, Hickerson, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, Hutchison, Jean, Jett, Lea, Leding, Lenderman, Love, Magie, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, Murdock, Neal, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Richey, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Slinkard, Steel, Talley, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, D. Whitaker, Williams, Wren, Wright.

Total50

NEGATIVE: Alexander, Baird, Ballinger, Baltz, Bell, Biviano, Bragg, Branscum, J. Burris, Catlett, Clemmer, Collins, J. Dickinson, Dotson, C. Douglas, Farrer, Fite, Hammer, Harris, House, Julian, Linck, Lowery, Mayberry, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Miller, Nickels, Payton, Walker, Wardlaw, Westerman, B. Wilkins, Womack.

Total34

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, C. Armstrong, Copenhaver, Cozart, Ferguson, Hillman, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, McLean, B. Overbey, [Smith,] H. Wilkins, Word, Mr. Speaker.

Total15

VOTING PRESENT: S. Malone.

Total1

Total number of votes cast.....85

Total number voting in the affirmative50

Necessary to the passage of the bill51

So the Bill failed.

Representative Bell requested the Sounding of the Ballot on **SENATE BILL NO. 1075** and the call was sustained. The following members votes were successfully challenged:

AYE: Smith

Total	01
Total number of votes cast.....	84
Necessary to the passage of the bill.....	51
Total voting in the affirmative.....	50
Total number voting in the negative.....	34
Total number absent or not voting.....	15
Total number voting present.....	01

So the Bill failed.

HOUSE BILL NO. 2051

BY: REPRESENTATIVE WRIGHT

Was read the third time and placed on final passage, the question being shall the Bill pass. The vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: Alexander, C. Armstrong, E. Armstrong, Baine, Baird, Ballinger, Baltz, Barnett, Bell, Biviano, Bragg, Branscum, Broadaway, J. Burris, Catlett, Clemmer, Collins, Copenhaver, Dale, Davis, Deffenbaugh, J. Dickinson, Dotson, C. Douglas, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Farrer, Ferguson, Fielding, Fite, Gillam, Gossage, Hammer, Harris, Hawthorne, Hillman, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, House, Jean, Jett, Julian, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, Lea, Leding, Lenderman, Linck, Love, Lowery, Magie, S. Malone, Mayberry, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, McLean, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Miller, Murdock, Neal, Nickels, B. Overbey, Payton, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Richey, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Slinkard, Steel, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, Wardlaw, Westerman, D. Whitaker, B. Wilkins, Williams, Wren, Wright.

Total87

NEGATIVE:

Total0

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, Carnine, Cozart, D. Douglas, Hickerson, Hutchison, F. Smith, Talley, Walker, H. Wilkins, Womack, Word, Mr. Speaker.

Total13

VOTING PRESENT:

Total0

Total number of votes cast87

Total number voting in the affirmative87

Necessary to the passage of the bill.....51

So the Bill passed and the title as read was agreed to.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1419

BY: REPRESENTATIVE J. BURRIS

Was read the third time and placed on final passage, the question being shall the Bill pass. The vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: Alexander, C. Armstrong, E. Armstrong, Baine, Ballinger, Baltz, Barnett, Bell, Biviano, Bragg, Branscum, Broadway, J. Burris, Catlett, Clemmer, Collins, Copenhaver, Davis, Deffenbaugh, J. Dickinson, Dotson, C. Douglas, D. Douglas, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Farrer, Ferguson, Fite, Gillam, Gossage, Hammer, Harris, Hawthorne, Hillman, Hobbs, Holcomb, Hopper, House, Hutchison, Jean, Jett, Julian, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, Lea, Leding, Linck, Love, Lowery, Magie, Mayberry, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, McLean, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Miller, Neal, Nickels, B. Overbey, Payton, Perry, Ratliff, Richey, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Steel, Talley, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, Walker, Wardlaw, Westerman, D. Whitaker, B. Wilkins, Williams, Womack, Wright.

Total82

NEGATIVE:

Total0

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, Baird, Carnine, Cozart, Dale, Fielding, Hickerson, Hodges, Lenderman, S. Malone, Murdock, Rice, Slinkard, F. Smith, H. Wilkins, Word, Wren, Mr. Speaker.

Total18

VOTING PRESENT:

Total0

Total number of votes cast82

Total number voting in the affirmative.....82

Necessary to the passage of the bill.....51

So the Bill passed and the title as read was agreed to.

HOUSE BILL NO. 2121

BY: REPRESENTATIVE HAWTHORNE

Was read the third time and placed on final passage, the question being shall the Bill pass. The vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: Alexander, C. Armstrong, E. Armstrong, Baine, Baltz, Barnett, Biviano, Branscum, Broadaway, J. Burris, Carnine, Catlett, Clemmer, Collins, Copenhaver, Dale, Davis, J. Dickinson, Dotson, C. Douglas, D. Douglas, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Farrer, Ferguson, Fielding, Fite, Gillam, Gossage, Hammer, Harris, Hawthorne, Hickerson, Hillman, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, House, Hutchison, Jean, Jett, Julian, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, Lea, Leding, Lenderman, Linck, Love, Lowery, Magie, S. Malone, Mayberry, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, McLean, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Murdock, Nickels, B. Overbey, Payton, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Richey, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Slinkard, F. Smith, Steel, Talley, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, Walker, Wardlaw, Westerman, D. Whitaker, B. Wilkins, Williams, Womack, Wren, Wright.

Total88

NEGATIVE:

Total0

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, Baird, Ballinger, Bell, Bragg, Cozart, Deffenbaugh, Miller, Neal, H. Wilkins, Word, Mr. Speaker.

Total12

VOTING PRESENT:

Total0

Total number of votes cast88

Total number voting in the affirmative88

Necessary to the passage of the bill.....51

So the Bill passed and the title as read was agreed to.

HOUSE BILL NO. 1785

BY: REPRESENTATIVE D. DOUGLAS

Was read the third time and placed on final passage, the question being shall the Bill pass. The vote was as follows:

AFFIRMATIVE: Alexander, C. Armstrong, E. Armstrong, Baine, Baird, Baltz, Barnett, Biviano, Bragg, Branscum, Broadaway, Carnine, Catlett, Clemmer, Copenhaver, Dale, Davis, Deffenbaugh, C. Douglas, D. Douglas, J. Edwards, Eubanks, Farrer, Ferguson, Fielding, Fite, Gillam, Gossage, Hammer, Harris, Hawthorne, Hickerson, Hillman, Hobbs, Hodges, Holcomb, Hopper, House, Hutchison, Jean, Jett, Julian, Kerr, Kizzia, Lampkin, Lea, Leding, Lenderman, Linck, Love, Lowery, Magie, S. Malone, Mayberry, McCrary, McElroy, McGill, McLean, D. Meeks, S. Meeks, Murdock, Neal, Nickels, B. Overbey, Perry, Ratliff, Rice, Richey, Sabin, Scott, Shepherd, Slinkard, F. Smith, Steel, Talley, T. Thompson, Vines, W. Wagner, Wardlaw, D. Whitaker, B. Wilkins, Williams, Womack, Wright.

Total84

NEGATIVE: Payton.

Total1

ABSENT OR NOT VOTING: D. Altes, Ballinger, Bell, J. Burris, Collins, Cozart, J. Dickinson, Dotson, Miller, Walker, Westerman, H. Wilkins, Word, Wren, Mr. Speaker.

Total15

VOTING PRESENT:

Total0

Total number of votes cast85

Total number voting in the affirmative.....84

Necessary to the passage of the bill.....51

So the Bill passed and the title as read was agreed to.

HOUSE BILLS ORDERED TRANSMITTED TO THE SENATE AS PASSED

HOUSE BILL NO. 1419	BY REPRESENTATIVE J. BURRIS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1785	BY REPRESENTATIVE D. DOUGLAS
HOUSE BILL NO. 2051	BY REPRESENTATIVE WRIGHT
HOUSE BILL NO. 2121	BY REPRESENTATIVE HAWTHORNE

ARKANSAS SENATE

SENATE BILLS RECEIVED FROM SENATE

SENATE BILL NO. 455	BY SENATOR MALOCH
SENATE BILL NO. 634	BY SENATOR S. FLOWERS
SENATE BILL NO. 655	BY SENATE EFFICIENCY
SENATE BILL NO. 824	BY SENATOR D. JOHNSON
SENATE BILL NO. 970	BY SENATOR MALOCH
SENATE BILL NO. 1019	BY SENATOR J. DISMANG
SENATE BILL NO. 1020	BY SENATOR J. DISMANG
SENATE BILL NO. 1050	BY SENATOR ELLIOTT
SENATE BILL NO. 1111	BY SENATOR S. FLOWERS
SENATE BILL NO. 1147	BY SENATOR L. CHESTERFIELD

ENROLLED AND DELIVERY TO GOVERNOR REPORTS

Little Rock, Arkansas

April 5, 2013

MR. SPEAKER:

We, your committee on Enrolled Bills, to whom was referred the following:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1104	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1116	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1160	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1180	BY REPRESENTATIVE STEEL, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1262	BY REPRESENTATIVE EUBANKS, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1301	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1315	BY REPRESENTATIVE LINCK, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1355	BY REPRESENTATIVE B. WILKINS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1426	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1457	BY REPRESENTATIVE BALLINGER, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1466	BY REPRESENTATIVE BALLINGER, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1497	BY REPRESENTATIVE H. WILKINS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1498	BY REPRESENTATIVE H. WILKINS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1569	BY REPRESENTATIVE BAINE, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1581	BY REPRESENTATIVE LEDING, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1595	BY REPRESENTATIVE BAIRD, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1598	BY REPRESENTATIVE BAIRD, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1691	BY REPRESENTATIVE HOBBS, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1699	BY REPRESENTATIVE VINES, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1886	BY REPRESENTATIVE LEA
HOUSE BILL NO. 1895	BY REPRESENTATIVE CATLETT, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1902	BY REPRESENTATIVE STEEL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1907	BY REPRESENTATIVE VINES, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1930	BY REPRESENTATIVE BALTZ, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 2008	BY REPRESENTATIVE COPENHAVER, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 2224	BY REPRESENTATIVE DOTSON

ENROLLED AND DELIVERY TO GOVERNOR REPORTS, CONTINUED

HOUSE BILL NO. 2227 BY REPRESENTATIVE H. WILKINS, ET AL
 beg leave to report that we have carefully compared the enrolled copies with the original and we find the same correctly enrolled and have at 11:55 a.m. delivered them to the Governor for his approval.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Davy Carter,
 Chairperson

RECEIPT FROM THE GOVERNOR

RECEIVED FROM THE HOUSE:

HOUSE BILL NO. 1104	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1116	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1160	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1180	BY REPRESENTATIVE STEEL, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1262	BY REPRESENTATIVE EUBANKS, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1301	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1315	BY REPRESENTATIVE LINCK, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1355	BY REPRESENTATIVE B. WILKINS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1426	BY JOINT BUDGET COMMITTEE
HOUSE BILL NO. 1457	BY REPRESENTATIVE BALLINGER, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1466	BY REPRESENTATIVE BALLINGER, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1497	BY REPRESENTATIVE H. WILKINS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1498	BY REPRESENTATIVE H. WILKINS
HOUSE BILL NO. 1569	BY REPRESENTATIVE BAINE, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1581	BY REPRESENTATIVE LEDING, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1595	BY REPRESENTATIVE BAIRD, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1598	BY REPRESENTATIVE BAIRD, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1691	BY REPRESENTATIVE HOBBS, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1699	BY REPRESENTATIVE VINES, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1886	BY REPRESENTATIVE LEA
HOUSE BILL NO. 1895	BY REPRESENTATIVE CATLETT, ET AL

RECEIPT FROM THE GOVERNOR, CONTINUED

HOUSE BILL NO. 1902	BY REPRESENTATIVE STEEL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1907	BY REPRESENTATIVE VINES, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 1930	BY REPRESENTATIVE BALTZ, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 2008	BY REPRESENTATIVE COPENHAVER, ET AL
HOUSE BILL NO. 2224	BY REPRESENTATIVE DOTSON
HOUSE BILL NO. 2227	BY REPRESENTATIVE H. WILKINS, ET AL

/s/ Mike Beebe - Governor

TIME: 11:55 a.m.

By: Sarah Agee

STATE OF ARKANSAS

**MIKE BEEBE
GOVERNOR**

April 4, 2013

TO THE SPEAKER OF THE HOUSE

Dear Mr. Speaker:

This is to inform you that on April 4, 2013, I approved the following measures from the Regular Session of the Eighty-ninth General Assembly:

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION NO. 1006

HOUSE BILL NO. 1575 - ACT 598
HOUSE BILL NO. 1616 - ACT 599
HOUSE BILL NO. 1770 - ACT 600

HOUSE BILL NO. 1087 - ACT 718	HOUSE BILL NO. 1600 - ACT 734	HOUSE BILL NO. 1827 - ACT 750
HOUSE BILL NO. 1103 - ACT 719	HOUSE BILL NO. 1601 - ACT 735	HOUSE BILL NO. 1849 - ACT 751
HOUSE BILL NO. 1137 - ACT 720	HOUSE BILL NO. 1602 - ACT 736	HOUSE BILL NO. 1850 - ACT 752
HOUSE BILL NO. 1158 - ACT 721	HOUSE BILL NO. 1603 - ACT 737	HOUSE BILL NO. 1888 - ACT 753
HOUSE BILL NO. 1211 - ACT 722	HOUSE BILL NO. 1604 - ACT 738	HOUSE BILL NO. 1936 - ACT 754
HOUSE BILL NO. 1298 - ACT 723	HOUSE BILL NO. 1605 - ACT 739	HOUSE BILL NO. 1948 - ACT 755
HOUSE BILL NO. 1354 - ACT 724	HOUSE BILL NO. 1606 - ACT 740	HOUSE BILL NO. 1983 - ACT 756
HOUSE BILL NO. 1447 - ACT 725	HOUSE BILL NO. 1607 - ACT 741	HOUSE BILL NO. 2011 - ACT 757
HOUSE BILL NO. 1465 - ACT 726	HOUSE BILL NO. 1608 - ACT 742	HOUSE BILL NO. 2013 - ACT 758
HOUSE BILL NO. 1591 - ACT 727	HOUSE BILL NO. 1609 - ACT 743	HOUSE BILL NO. 2021 - ACT 759
HOUSE BILL NO. 1592 - ACT 728	HOUSE BILL NO. 1610 - ACT 744	HOUSE BILL NO. 2025 - ACT 760
HOUSE BILL NO. 1593 - ACT 729	HOUSE BILL NO. 1611 - ACT 745	HOUSE BILL NO. 2029 - ACT 761
HOUSE BILL NO. 1594 - ACT 730	HOUSE BILL NO. 1700 - ACT 746	HOUSE BILL NO. 2048 - ACT 762
HOUSE BILL NO. 1596 - ACT 731	HOUSE BILL NO. 1707 - ACT 747	HOUSE BILL NO. 2083 - ACT 763
HOUSE BILL NO. 1597 - ACT 732	HOUSE BILL NO. 1799 - ACT 748	HOUSE BILL NO. 2157 - ACT 764
HOUSE BILL NO. 1599 - ACT 733	HOUSE BILL NO. 1826 - ACT 749	HOUSE BILL NO. 2179 - ACT 765

Sincerely,

/s/ Mike Beebe

STATE CAPITOL, SUITE 250 • LITTLE ROCK, AR 72201
TELEPHONE (501) 682-2345 • FAX (501) 682-1382
INTERNET WEB SITE • www.governor.arkansas.gov

Upon motion of Representative Duncan Baird, the House adjourned at 2:00 p.m. until 10:00 a.m., Saturday, April 6, 2013.

ATTEST:

Davy Carter
Speaker of the House of Representatives

Sherri Stacks
Chief Clerk